NAMELESS...BUT NUMBERED

Obscure Vessels and Other Structures Once Anointed
with Newport News Shipbuilding Hull Numbers

Traditionally, the listing of hull numbers for vets built by the Newport News
Shipbuilding & Dry Dock Company (NNS) is tabulatedchronological and numerical
order of assignment; starting with the tug DOROTHNS Hull #1. The majority of six

hundred-plus numbers assigned to date are largstycated with world class and world
renowned ships that have made NNS well known arldrespected for over a century.

But sandwiched in between the ocean liners andhige®n such lists are over a hundred
miscellaneous watercraft, plus a curious handfuiaf-ship structures. What they had in
common, besides being given NNS hull numbers, & thone of them were self-
propelled, none had proper ship names and noreeof tvere apparently christened.

The majority were steel barges of various types.tRe most part, they had unrecorded
careers. Nevertheless, these vessels constitutednportant part of Newport News

Shipbuilding’s product mix during two distinct pedis of time when orders for ocean
going vessels were few and far between; i.e., enfifst twenty years of the shipyard’s
existence and in the ‘shipbuilding holiday’ perioetween the two world wars.

Hands down, the most interesting of the
NNS hull numbers assigned to barges
were 34 associated with a series of six
multiple barge orders placed between
1907 and 1910 by the Isthmian Can&lEs=
Commission (ICC). Twenty-four of the
were classified as rock barges; the
remaining ten as dump barges. They mgg
major contributions to the building of th é
Panama Canal. The majority of thegg
barges were doubled-ended; large
devoid of superstructures. Collectively=
their displacement exceeded 32,000 tons.

NNS Hull # Length (ft) Beam (ft) Displ. (tons) Leftyard
69-74 126 31 805 Jun-Aug 190y
89-94 127.33 32 855 Apr 1908
95-106 157 35 1,005 Jun 1908

108-109 157 35 1,005 Sep’t 1908
110-113 126 31 805 Sep’t 1908
137-140 168 35 1,095 Nov 1910




The last four (NNS Hull Nos. 137-140) that werelbiar ICC actually looked more like
small ships than barges, and had the largest diorensf any of the 34 barges built for
ICC. They featured bows and sterns that looked nhi&ee ships than barges, small
deckhouses fore and aft and topped with extrenadlginokestacks. Although fitted with

a single coal-fired, natural draft boiler that abalevelop 110 pounds of steam pressure,
shipyard records indicate that they had no propalsngines.

It is presumed steam driven machinery was instatiempen and close their hatch covers,
and that the deckhouses served as shelter for cansiruction workers. Shown below is
NNS Hull #138, with a sister ‘ship’ in the backgmlj probably at the time of their
delivery in November of 1910.

The smaller barges were mass produced on one oflilpyard’'s original wooden
shipways. They were constructed in assembly Ilnshltm in groups of three and
launched without ceremony. Thegs a .

elapsed time between order a
delivery of these all riveted bargefu
averaged six months. Whe
delivered, also in small groups, th
majority of the ICC barges wers
towed to Panama.

But an early order of six bargess
was ‘knocked-down’ after being ,J “
built in sections and boltec
together. Transported by ship to [
port city on the Atlantic side of theg
Canal Zone, their sub-assembli¢
were off-loaded onto rail cars
They then crossed the isthmus
the town of LaBoca on the Pacifi
side where they were complete
and put to work.



During the first year of the United
States’ effort to create the Panama
Canal, engineers struggled to excavate
massive amounts of earth and rock to
create the Culebra Cut. After a year of
toil, they managed to average the
removal of a million cubic yards a
month. With the assistance of the NNS-
built barges, the number of cubic yards
removed per month eventually peaked
at four million. All together, 268
million cubic yards were removed
before the canal was completed in
1914; a year ahead of schedule.

Some of the materials removed were
transported by rail and simply dumped in

the surrounding jungle. But a largg=—"""
percentage was moved by barge to cre
500 acres of landfill upon which the city
of Balboa was built. In addition, a million=
and a quarter cubic yards of rock remov
from the Culebra Cut were utilized tg
create the Naos Island Breakwater.

When the canal was completed, construction equipmas sold, scrapped or abandoned
in place. There is no known record of what happetoethe “Newport News 34”. But
since the Culebra Cut required constant dredgingléar massive landslides, it is
reasonable to assume that some of the NNS-buiffelsawere retained for years, along
with cranes and dredges used during the canal’sticartion. Photos of barges currently
in use in Panama do not resemble any of thosedUNNS a century ago.

Other barges built at Newport News are worthy ofiaf discussion. Most of them were
special-purpose craft, such as coal, oil and graaémges for various customers,
ammunition lighters for the US Navy and railroad ftaats for Mr. Huntington’'s C&O
railroad. One of the several car floats built foe C&O, NNS Hull #160, was completed
in 1912 and was actually larger than many self-plled ships of her era. Known as
C&O Railway Car Float #1, she measured 340 fetdrigth and displaced 2,168 tons.

At the other end of the spectrum are NNS Hull Nids.and 11. In 1893, contracts with
two other shipyards were accepted to produce machiior vessels built elsewhere. The
machinery built for NNS Hull #10 included a doulkt of paddlewheels for a ferry boat
named TWIN CITY. The machinery that was built unN®&S Hull #11 was destined for

installation in a freight/passenger vessel nametlISANA.



Four of the hull numbers assigned by Newport Nehipl&iilding were used for internal
purposes. Two of them, Hull Nos. 355 and 368 wemallsbarges. Hull #355 was a 100
foot-long oil barge, listed in the shipyard’'s intery as NNS #33 when completed in
1932. Hull #368, completed in 1937 was an 84 foogl barge that carried the ‘name’
NNS #30. She was tagged with the inglorious degsonmf ‘scow’.

NNS Hull Nos. 33 and 63 were assigned to facilitdte purchase and assembly of
materials used to construct the original gatecéissons, as they were called in the early
20" century) for Dry Docks #2 and #3, respectivelyeEwnore unusual, these structures
were both built in the inboard ends of their resppecdry docks while those facilities
were still under construction. In each case, temocofferdams placed in the James
River permitted this work to proceed, along witmstouction of the gate sills at the dry
docks’ outboard ends.

This photo shows Dry Dock #3 in
March of 1908, during construction.
Hull #63, the dry dock’s gate, can be
seen in the background, at the head of
the dry dock. Due to the dry dock’s
original configuration, it had to be built
at right angle to its in-service orientation
at the outboard end of the facility. A
similar scene was photographed in
December of 1900 for Hull #33.

On March 29, 1901, Dry Dock #2 was flooded; itsegidated, turned and put in place.

After countless removals and replacements, it veataced and presumably scrapped in
1959, when that dry dock was modernized and erdar§esimilar set of circumstances

chronicle the history of the original gate for Cibpck #3. It was first floated on June 4,

1908, and replaced in 1967 when that dry dock wsasraodernized and enlarged.

NNS hull numbers were also utilized for severafiéaship conversion projects between
1914 and 1957. This practice fell into disuse afgeship repair numbering system was
modified to cover all such work. One reason for ¢thange, perhaps, is that a few NNS-
built vessels had two hull numbers assigned, wioften resulted in some confusion
(e.g., the liner AMERICA was built as Hull #369 diater reconditioned as Hull #461).

Hull numbers are still utilized internally at NN8rfnew ship construction, but are not

released for publication. The days when all shigyaublicity invariably and proudly
identified ships with the prefiOur Hull # are apparently over. Progress? Perhaps...
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